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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCX)RD, NH 03301
603-271.9474 1-800-852.3345 ExL 9474

Fax; 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800.735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 4. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (VC#177195), Berlin, New Hampshire to continue to provide
services to homeless individuals with serious mental illness through the Project for Assistance in
Transition from Homelessness (PATH) program, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $104,744 from $104,744 to $209,488 and extending the
completion date from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2023 effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item #42.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022
and 2023, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7926 Health and Social Services, Dept of Health and Human Services,
HHS: Human Services, Path Grant

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42307150 $52,372 $0 $52,372

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42307150 $52,372 $0 $52,372

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

42307150 $0 $52,372 $52,372

2023 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

42307150 $0 $52,372 $52,372

Subtotal $104,744 $104,744 $209,488

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originaily approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labeled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide specialized services to individuals
with serious mental illness or those who have both serious mental illness and substance use

disorders, and are experiencing homelessness or at imminent risk of being homeless. The vendor
will continue to offer comprehensive homeless outreach services and will continue to provide
training and supervision of PATH services throughout the region.

Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration PATH Grant

enable the vendor to continue the engagement of eligible individuals through homeless street
outreach, referrals for screening and diagnostic treatment, mental health services and the delivery
of housing, training and case management.

PATH case management services include, but are not limited to; assistance in obtaining
and coordinating services for eligible individuals relative to income support services, including
housing assistance, food stamps, and supplemental security income (SSI) benefits; and referrals
for other services, including referrals to the community mental health centers as may be
appropriate.

Approximately 600 individuals will be served from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 1.3 of
this original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to
renew sen/ices for two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for individuals experiencing homelessness with serious mental
illness may not be available in their community, which may increase the demand placed upon
local welfare authorities. People who are without housing and resources may resort to seeking
local shelter in places unfit for human habitation, or may attempt to travel to shelters in other
communities. This may increase the likelihood that individuals experiencing homelessness may
be in danger of injury or death, while being cut off from basic supports for health, education, and
treatment.

Area served: Coos, Carroll and Grafton Counties.

Source of funds: CFDA #93.150, FAIN#TBD.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Project for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item 42), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$209,488

3. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Tri-Counly Community Action Program, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-03-PATH-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date VW2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2021, subject to Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/11/2021

Date

— DocuSlgn#d by:

NaiTT5':®°®^''r^|?i°ne Santaniello
Title:

Director

5/10/2021

Date

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

^OocuSlgnvd by:

fylfiiUrJi

11 ard

Title: CEO

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-03-PATH-01-A01 Page 2 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 88A505C8-D1DB-498E-B368-EOAAF9A124D5

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OocuSigned by;

5/12/2021

Date Name:°^l°^fie*rTne Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the. Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-03-PATH-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Secretar>' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihal TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>' of State's oHlce have

been received and is in good standing as far as this olTicc is concerned.

Business 10: 63020

Certificate Number: 0005362631

%

a&i

O
to

%

IN TESTIMONY WHI-REOf,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th dav of Mav A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Sandy Alonzo , hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ChairA/lce Chair/ Secretary of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 29th , 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard, CEO; Randall Pilotte, CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of TrI-County Community Action Program, lnc._ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote,

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the dale of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: lO- ZZ>1Li
Signature of Elec
Name: Sandy Alohzo
Title: Board Chair

icer

Rev. 03/24/20
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AcSrc/ CERTIFICATE of LIABILITY insurance DATE (MMJDD/YYYY)

01/28/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOV^. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER|S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor$ement(s).

pROOucea

FIAI/Ctoss Insurance

iKXIEIm Street

Manchester NH 03101

Andrea NicWln

(603)669-3218 (603)645^1

Ai^ESS- anicklin@crossagency.com
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICd

iNsiiRPR A • Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

TrI-County Community Action Program, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

iNSiiRpR fl - Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C :

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20-21 Aj|/21-22 WC REVISION NUMBER:

INSR
LTR

THIS ts TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAO CLAIMS.

MLIdVeicPPOLICY EFF
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADS OCCUR

OENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

^ POUCY I I I IPOUCY LOC

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIASIUTY

ANYAUTOX

X

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

excess uab

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

claims-maoe

DEO X RErENTION t ''O-QQO
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERAIEMBER EXaUDEO?
(MMdatory In NH)

0
If yas. dvscHbe under
DCSSCRIPTIQN OF OPERATIONS bekrw

PHPK2150055

PHPK2150050

PHUB728176

HCHS20210000428 {3a,) NH

(MMfPOfTfYYI

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

02A31/2021

IMMrt)b/YYYY1

07/01/2021

07/01/2021

07/01/2021

02/01/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO HIINTIO
PREMISES lEe occuftcnce)

MEO EXP (Any one perton)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEeaetidenn

BODILY INJURY (Per perYon)

BOOILY INJURY (Per accideni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccidenll

Underlnsured molorlsl

EMc'lToCCURRlNci

AGGREGATE

STATUTE
OTH
ER

E .L. EACH ACCIDENT

6.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE

E.U. DISEASE • POLICY UMIT

1,000,000

100,000

5.000

1.000,000

3,000.000

3,000,000

1.000,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

1,000.000

1,000,000

Professional Liability
PHPK2150055 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACOAO 101. Additional Ramirlct Schadule. may be atueliad II more S|>aee Is required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements end special provisions.

Contracts 4 Procuremeni

DHHS - State of NH

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO
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MISSION STATEMENT

Tri-County Community Action Program

provides opportunities to strengthen

communities by improving the lives of

low to moderate income families and

individuals.

VISION STATEMENT

Individuals and famiiies.are ernpowered

to create vibrant communities and.

foster self-sufficiency.

VALUES STATEMENT

Tri-County Community Action Program,

values a culture of integrity.

This Includes:

1. Transparency in all our interactions

and communications, stressing

accountability to ourselves as an

organization and to those we serve.

2. Connection to community. We value

our community partners and work

to build strong partnerships that

unite us all in the common goal of

improving the lives of others.

3. Recognition of our mutual humanity.

We treat customers, co-workers

and colleagues with compassion,

fairness, dignity and respect.

4. We value the empowerment of

those who seek our services,

believing that empowerment leads

to improved self-worth and enables

those we serve to fully participate in
their communities and share their

success with others.

JRI-COUNTY
COMMUNITY ACTION

Serving Coos. Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

Araplr. Oian^ IMi.

9^ ̂community

Action.
PARTNCHSHIF

30 Exchange St.Berlin, NH 03570

Phone; (603) 752-7001

Fax: (603) 752-7607

www.tccap.org

55
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Financial Statements

TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEWIENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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TRI-COUNTY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Statements of Financial Position

Statement of Activities

Statements of Cash Flows

Statements of Functional Expenses

Notes to Financial Statements

Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by
the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Paqefs)

1 -2

3

4

5

6-7

8-28
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts
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To the Board of Directors of certified pubuc accountani^
Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate woijeboro • korth
Berlin, New Hampshire dover • concord

STRATIIAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TrI-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30. 2020 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We. conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative information
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2019
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 21, 2019, In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 28, 2020

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-COUNTY community ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

2020 2019

$  2.257,081 $ 1,400,750

796.937 583,963

1.322.852 1,274,083
47.000 47,000
307,017 231,161

102,430 85,886

77.882 34.037

4.911.199 3,656,880

12.344.805 12,086,152
(5,601.944) (5.178,535)

6.742.861 6,907,617

384.711 418.936

$ 12,038.771 $ 10,983,433

$  437,843 $ 148,449

3,554 4,870

180,427 221,571

243,779 204.079

49,059 210,952

137,304 89,524

181,463 197,157

850.982 598.195

Total current liabilities 2,084.411 1,674,797

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion 4,792.557 5,227.835
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 3.355

Total liabilities 6.876.968 6.905,987

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 4,565.253 3,399,192
With donor restrictions 596.550 678,254

Total net assets 5,161.803 4,077,446

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 12,038,771 $ 10,983,433

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants and contracis

Program funding
Utility programs
In-kind contributions

Contributions

Fundraising
Rental income

Interest income

Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sale

Other revenue

Tola! revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and

net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Sen/iccs;
Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation.
Volunteer

Worttforce Development
Carroil County Dental
Support Center
Homeless

Energy and Community Development
Eider

Housing Services

Total program services

Supporting Actlvllles:

Gerteral and administrative

Fundraising

Total supporting activities

Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Rpstrictions

$  14,425,841

1.084.133

1.923.653
455.826

326.215
32.544

635.559

923

2,225

4.379

18,891.298

565.176

19.456.474

With Donor

Restrictions

5  483,472

483,472

(565.176)

181.704)

2020

Total

14,909.313

1.084,133

1.923.653

455.826
326.215
32.544

635.559
923

2.225

±m

19.374,770

19_,374.770

2019

Total

14,475.114

1.167.509

1.287.103

477.167
230,986

39.303

625,046

643

(32,692)
(255,492)
196.364

18.210,851

18.210.651

1.047.356 1.047,356 950.639

2,769,065 - 2.769.065 2.758.782

769,597 - 769.597 767.241

991,504 - 991.504 916.089

94.845 . 94.845 118.408

346,114 . 346.114 354.263

653,810 . 653.810 747.474

558.244 - 558.244 355.206

800.148 . 800,148 714.066

7.824.201 . 7.824.201 7,788.560

1.149,136 . 1.149,136 1,191.571

220.900 - 220.900 172.852

17,224.920 17.224.920 16.835.151

1.062.613 1,062.613 1.032.207

2.880 . 2.880 9,895

1.065,493 1.065.493 1.042.102

18.290.413 . 18.290.413 17.877.253

1.166.061 (81.704) 1.084.357 333.598

3,399,192

$  4.565.253

678,254 4.077.446 3.743.648

596.550 $ S.161.803 S 4.077.446

See Notos to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRUCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS '
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Depreciation and arnortization
(Gain) loss on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sale

(Increase) decrease in assets;

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities;

Accounts payable

Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property

Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net repayment on demand note payable
Repayment on long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

2020 2019

S  1,084,357 $ 333,598

436,197

(2,225)

(48,769)
(75,856)
(16,544)

(43.845)

(41,144)

39,700

(161,893)

47.780
(15,694)
252,787

1.454.851

4,495

(273,711)

(269,216)

(145,884)
H.671)

(150,555)

1,035,080

2,403,649

448,556

32,892

255,492

(117,426)
(18,954)

1,683
(8.397)

(15,705)

958

23,444
(42,364)

6,088
211,027

1,110,892

14,283
(95,588)

(81,305)

(516,022)

(141,273)
(4,446)

(661,741)

367,846

2,035.803

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for;

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donMed

S  3.438,729

131,879

S  2.403.649

$  152,078

18,830

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAI^S ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action.
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Aaencv

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s. Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Corhmunity Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.

8
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's groiMh and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 413
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

over 27,955 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.
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The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full

array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and

stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention: supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

10
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Low-Income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in. the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

11
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Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $596,550 and $678,254
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

12
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method: this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

13
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $181,463 and $197,157 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2016.

The Organization follows FASB ASC. Accounting fpr Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe th6y have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the

Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

14
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Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how/ long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are

reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until.the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable, value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is Included in contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than

one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no

unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of, $307,017 and $231,161,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

15
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 {ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the. Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and Insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

16
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The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 10.4%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was approximately 10.82%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs .it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $25,483 and
$11,698, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs" The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2020 and 2019.

New Accountinq Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230): Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity in
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. The amendments require that a statement of
cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the Organization's fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020 and has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.
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During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and. the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting
standard is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional.

ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization, determines whether a resource provider
is receiving commensurate value In return for a grant. If the resource provider does
receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the transaction is an
exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the
transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June
30, 2020 and 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material
impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COViD-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. GOVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Organization,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020
and 2019: .

2020 2019

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 2,257,081 $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1,274,083
Pledges receivable 307.017 231.161

Total financial assets 3.886.950 2.905.994
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Less amounts not available to be

used within one year;
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

596,550

(410.015)

186.535

$  3.700.415

678.254

(565.176)

113.078

-S - 2.792.916

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,860,000 and $2,786,000 respectively,
at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was approximately $2,653,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to, the total in the staterhents of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

202Q

$ 2,257,081
^  796,937

384.711

2019

$ 1,400,750
583,963

418.936

$^,403,649

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must, be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $20,040 and $20,010, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2020 and 2019 was $174,626 and $174,451, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2020 and 2019
was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. This was donated to another non-profit
Organization during the year ended June 30,2020.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $190,045 and $179,277, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2020 and 2019, inventory included weathehzation materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consists of weathehzation materials
totaling $102,430 and $85,886, respectively.

NOTE 5. ACCRUED EARNED TIIVIE

For the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 180 hours. At June 30, 2020 and
2019, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $243,779 and $204,079,
respectively.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 9,810,288
2,105,950

4,727
423.840

Accumulated

Depreciation

$ 3,753,302
1,848,642

$5.601.944

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated
Cost Depreciation

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

$ 9,709,749
1,950,063

2,500

423.840

$12,086,15^

$3,469,618
1,708,917

Net

Book Value

$6,056,986
257,308

4,727

423.840

$_6.242A61

Net

Book Value

$6,240,131
241,146

2,500

423.840

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$435,310 and $447,669, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounting
to $47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492 in 2019.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of
the following:
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2020 2019

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 110,824 $ 124,867

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 307,719 328,896

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021. 4,478 9,618

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 4,228 7,642

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 3,948 7,385

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 705 2,331

Note payable to a financing company requiring .72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 7,294 9,739

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 387,227 395,429
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2020 2019

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

2,547,308 2.634,595

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

5,241,331 5,388,102
f10.931l (11.8181

5,230,400 5,376,284
(437.8431 (148.4491

$5,227,835

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

Amount

$  437,843
123,107
485.399
118,243

122,486
3.954.253

$ 5.241.331

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.
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NOTES. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations Included in capital leases at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consisted of
the following;

2020 2019

Lease payable to. a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 1.213 $ 3,291

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 944 2,261

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 1.397 2.673

3,554 8,225

Less current portion f3.554) (4.8701

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2020 were as
follows:

Year ending
June 30 Amount

2021 £ 3.554
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NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance-
outstanding at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. The unsecured
revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,004 and $181,127, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2021 $ 127,803
2022 7.321

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of In-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
approximately $14,380,020 (74%) and $13,951,828 (77%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30. 2020 and 2019, approximately 68% and 69%. respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to. HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to.pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 307,017 $ 231,161

FAR 102,998 117,470

Restricted Buildings 85,713 87,541

DOE 46,287 -

FAP/EAP 24,350 11,290

Loans - HSGP 22,029 19,907

RSVP Program Funds 5,887 7,056

Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,571

RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 -

Loans - HHARLF 104 -
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BWP/HRRP Program 94
10 Bricks Shelter Funds - 142,190
Support Center - 25,939
Weatherization - 25,000
Senior Meals - 5,130
Head Start : 3.999

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 596:550 $ 678.254

NOTE 14. COMIVIITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30. 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
2020, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.
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NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $155,278 and $129,407 were held in a segregated account at
June 30. 2020 and 2019, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $31,049 and $46,514 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved,the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment.

NOTE 16. RECLASSiFICATION
Certain amourits and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28,
2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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TRUCQUMTY COMMUNITY ACy^ON PWCXSRAM tWC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEOERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

O

%

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUUBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

GRANTOR'S

IDENTIFYING

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENOmjRES

U.S. PcMrtTTWrW or H« I Human StHcw

He»d S'AH

Head Start

low-mcocns Home Energy Assistance
LOMMncortie Home Eneryy Assistance
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

AGtNG CLUSTER

Special Programs for the Agmg - Title III. Part 8 • Grants lor Supportive Services ano Seriar Centers (SEAS)
Special Programs for the Aging • Title III. Part 6 - Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers {Sr. Vt^els)

Special Programs tor the Agirx) - Title IB. Part 0 - Nutrttion Services (Congregate & HD Meals)

Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NS1P)

93.600

93.600

93.568

93.566

93.568

93.568

93.044

93.044

93.045

93.053

State of New Hampshire Ofltce of Energy and Ptarmirtg
State of New Hampshire Office of Energy end Ptanr^
State ot New Hampshire OfTice of Energy end Planning
Stale of New Kaiepshire OfTice of Energy and Planning

State of New Harrpshlre Office of Energy end Plarvting

Slate ol Now Hampshire Department of Heahh arxf Hutrtan Services

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire Deportment of Health and Human Services

01CHtO00O«5-0O

OtCKtOOOCLOe-OO

TOTAL

G-1931NHL>EA

G-20B1NHLIEA

G-1981NHLIEA 1056420

G-20B1NHUEA 1056420

TOTAL

1BAANHT3SS

512-500352

TOTAL

541-500386

NONE

CLUSTER TOTAL

t.595.937

1.P42.272

2.638.209

120,562
5.404.284

84.805

'246,833

5.856.564

7.247

122.681

129.926

279,797

95.471

505.196

Community Services Block Grarv

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assis'jnce for Needy Families (NHEP Workplace Success)
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (JARC)

HIV Care Formula Grants (Ryan White Care Program)

Social Servicas Blodi Grant (Title XX l&R)
Social Services Blocfc Grant (Tide XX HO)
Social Services Block <3rant (GuardiansfEp)

Promoting Safe and Stable Famiilesrt^amily Violence Prevention and Services/Discretionary

PreventatK-e HHS Block Grant S Iniury Preventicn and Control Research

Projects for Assisianca in Transition Irom Homelessness (PATH)

Special Programs for the Aging Title IV and Title II Discretionary Prqects

Total U.S. Department of Health arwj Hurttan Services

Stele of New Hamos-hire Oeperimcni of Kleelth ana Human Services

93.558 Southern New Hampshire Services, tnc.
93.558 Slate of New Hampshire Oepartmant of Health and Human Servicas

93,917 State of New Hampshire Department of Healtn end Human Services

93.667 S'Ata of New Hampshire Departmeni of Heefth eno Human Services
93.667 State of New Hampshire Oepertmenl of Health and Hunan Services
93,667 State of New Harrpshire Depertmeni of Health and Human Services

93.556 & 93.592 State of New'Hampshire CoeUion against Domestic arvf Sevuai Vioience

93.136 6 93.758 State of New Nampsnire Coalition against Domestic and Sexual Vtolenca

93.150 Stale of New Harrpshlre Bureau of Homelessness and Housing

93.048 Slate of New HampsNre Department of Health end Human Services

16-OHHS-ewW.CSP-OS

' ie02NHTANF
CLUSTER TOTAL

530-500371

545-500387

544-500386

102-500731

TOTAL

SPRDV

SVP

05-95-42-423010-7926

318.992

24.800.

343.792

8.495

111.196

64.819
13.695

209.710

53.401

59.029

20,000

10.378,306
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENOrTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE ?0. 2020

FEDERAL GRAHTORff'ROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS NAME

GRANTOR'S

lOEMTIFYING

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENOrrURES

Weaiherizstion AtJistsnca lof Lnv-tnootno Poaons

Total U.S. DeparVnem of Ener^ir

U-S. CpfWftoo lor Natlooil and CommunllT Sarvtca

Retired end Senior Volunteer Program

Total U.S. Corporation for National erto Comtnunity Service

CW and Adm Cera Food Program

Total U.S. Oepanmeni of Agitctitura

U.S. Deeartmertt of Homelind Securttv

Emergency Food & Shelter Program (FEMA)

Emergency Managemerv Performance Grants (FEMA)

Tdtel U.S. Depertfliete of Homeland Secunty

Crime Victim Assisunce (VOCA)

Sexual AssaUl Services FcimuU Progrem (SaSP)

OVW Tecftnleal Assistance inHletive

Total U.S. Oepartmeni of Justice

U.S. D«i>irtment of Trarwoeftatlcn

Fomiua Oraras tor Rural Areas (SecSon 5311)

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enhartced MoWlty of Seniors arxf Individuals with Ksa&iL'Jes

Total U.S. Depaitmeni of TransaonaSon

U.S. Daoartmant of Housing and UrPan Deveieomem

Emergency Sdutiotts Gram Program

Continuum of Care Program (HOIP)
Continoum of Care Program (HOIP)

Total U.S Oepartmeni ol Housing and Uit>an Oevetopment

ei.042 Stall of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Energy & Community Servlcas EE000703S i 465 349

$ 465349

94.002 t9SRANHOOt i

i

76.072

76.072

to.sss Slate of New HampsrSre Deoarvneni ol Educaflon NONE %

s

159.225

159.225

97.024 s 29.388

97.042 State of New HarrpsNre Depattmeni of Safety EMB-2017.EP-00005-S01

s

43.082

72.470

16.575 Slate of New Hampshire CoeBtion agalrtsi Domestic and Sexual Vldence NONE $ 224.910

Slate of New Hampshire Coition against Dontes'je and Sexual violence

Grefton County Court

201#-KF-AX-0043 16 306

. 16.526 OVt.V.2016-t382g

s

61.303

302.519

20.509 State of New Hampstwe Oepament of Transportation NH-ta.X046 s 515.335

20.513 Stale of New Kamptnire Department of Transportation NH.65-X006

auSTER TOTAL

18.034

18.034

s 533.360

14,231 State of New Hampshire Departmens of HeetTi end Human Services 102-500731 5 100.662

14.267

14.267

Slate of New HamoiMre Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Ha-mpsnite Oepartment of HeMth and Human Services

ss.20ieaHKS-oi-coe«a

NHCfSOSiTnOt

182.876
72.548

tOTAl

s

255 424

356.066
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SCHCDULe OF CXPENDin/RES OF FEOeRM. AWARDS

FOR TKg rEAR ENDeO JOM6 ». »»

FEOeRAL GRAWTOWPROCRAM TTOE

FEKRAA

CFDA

NUMBER

PAS&-THROUCH

GRANTORS NAME

GRANTOR'S

OENnFYMG

NUMBER

FEOERAL
EXPENOtTURES

U.S. 0»B«ctn>ent <Ff L»bof

WIAfWIOA CLUSTER

WIA/WlOA AduH Pn^m
WlMVrtOA DiiieeMid Wmiiar Forniul* Orani*

Tcul U.S. Otpanmam ef Labor

U.S. Deeoftinwit of thi Tf—ourv

C«ran*vwu» Relid Fund

Coronavirus RcTiel Fwid

Total U.S. Oopanmant el Troanay

TOTAL EXPENOTTURES OF FEOERAL AWARDS

NOTFFEOERAL

Now Hampihic* Pubk LKIHiot Company - Home Enoryy Asiiatonca

17.2SB Soutbam NewHampsNro Sarvtcai, Inc
t7.278 Southern New Hairpahiro Servicn, Inc.

21.019 State o( NH Oepanmeni of FttS. QviMon o( LT Suppona and Servtea*
21.019 Governor** Office of Emeryency ReM and Recovery

CCMD • 19 Lenp Term Car* StaWtrttion Pioyram

2015-000«

2016-0004

CLUSTER TOTAL

38.746

22^212

89,460

3S.460

1,839.656

IX3TE A ■ BASIS OF PRESENTATIOW

The aeeoepMWi seheOul* of opendittaes of Federal Awwd* (the Stfiedute) includes me ledcrN award actfrity of Tri-CouMy Cemnwty Artbo Proflrom. Inc. under proprems af Via lederal aovammenl Nr the year aided June 30. 2020. The Woimalion In 'Jd*
t  >" trrnmr-vr. ̂  ih. fd TM« 7 tl A ftnan of Federal RepuUtloni Pan 200. tMiCPmt AcftiMisfratfio Reotarefneea. CoN ftwctfto, a-irfAudS R»0w6t»/B*«fcrF*d*r*/Awoda (Uratomi CtAdanee). BecM* Ih* Schedtd* preseAi

only a stitcied portion of Bm aperaticna of TrLCoiady Cemmuniy AcSon Propfwn Inc.. It to not Mended lo and does rw present m* IJnandal pesHion. change* in nel a*»ei*. or c**h Itow* ef the Otganizaiicn.

NOTE a - SUMMARY OF SIGN1FICAWT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Eipandtiaei repcned on the Schadute ve reponod «a> the aeenial baits accounting. Sudt ospendihae* are reeognizad loPowing th* coal prtndplts contained In LWSorm (Stadanca. wherein certain type* of espendinaes art not aSoweUo or ar*
leanbursement. Nagabvt amouni* shown cn Iho Schedde represeni adjustments or eratf Is made in tne normal eetase of tatsaiess lo ametads raportad at axpandlltaae in prior years.

NOTE C - INDIRECT RATE

Tn-CeiattyCorrahunltyActiooProBramlnc. has eleoad lo nol uso Iho 10-pereanl a* rnWrnto indlreel cost ralo allowed under the Unrfarm CuidBnca.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc..(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of Its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28. 2020
North Conway. New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the QMS Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2020. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A dericiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to. prevent, or detect and correct, noncompiiance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance Is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompiiance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 28, 2020

North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health S Human Services, CSBG - CFDA #93.569

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Home Energy Assistance (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Board of Directors

FY2021

Coos County Carroll County Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzo

Interim Vice Chair

Anne Barber

Linda Massimilla

Secretary

Tricia Garrison

Karolina Brzozowska

Richard Mcleod

Treasurer

George Sykes
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"If human beings are perceived as potentials rather than
problems, as possessing strengths instead ofweaknesses, as

unlimited rather than dull andunresponsive.then they thrive
andgrowtotheircapabilities."

-Barbara Bush

Experience

July 2020«-Pres©nt

Chief Programs Officer* TCCAP, Inc

Responsible to provide leadership, supervision, oversight, and management of
the agency's programs and services directly or through a program director or
manager as well as works with the Chief Executive Officer to develop ftihire
business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
comply with national program standards and state / federal governing laws and
requirements.

May 2019-Pre8ent

DivlsiOD Director* TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
design, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the programs
and facilities under Prevention Services which include Guardianship Services;
Homeless Programs, including Tyler Blain Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Services for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault,
including Emergency Shelter Services at the Support Center at Burch House

Sept2018-Present

Division Operations Coordinator* TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible for monitoring compliance of grant deliverables and legal /ethical
integrity of programs and services offered throu^out the Division. Responsible
to compile and analyze division data; reporting trends and outcomes to Sr.
management and local stakeholders. Responsible to develop, review, and
update program written policy, procedures, and work flows. Responsible for
program development and oversight.

May2017-Augu8t 2018
North Country SUD Continuum of Care Kacilij
Coordinator •North Country Health Censor^

eoUTr/iisiih)

COCF; The North Country Region's desi^icd'SlRie'liai^'rcsponsib^
work with regional key stakeholders to cond^ a comp/ehCT'siyc assets aqd
analysis; reporting back fmdings to NH D^^S mtd fccilHalc.thcdtycldpnMmL
of a comprehensive plan aimed to cre^c^u tdbust, cfTcctTvc; tuid \yeH;
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April 2014-May 2017

Division Director • TCCAP, Inc- Clinical Services

esponsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
rt»ign, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency ofthe programs and
facilities under Clinical Services including the Division of Alcohol and other
Df^Aservlccs, Friendship House; the region's 32- bed Residential Treatment
foeilil?, and the Tamworth Dental Center Practice.

(i.sy Sy|>4-Aprll 2014
'' '.viijclate Division Director •TCCAP, Inc- Division of Alcohol and Drugs

1r ̂ njimction with the Division Director, responsible to provide joint Sr.
Lc/dership and oversight to the development, design, daily operation,

pliance, and financial solvency of the programs and facilities under the
ivision of Alcohol and other Drug Services, including Friendship House, the

region's 32- bed Residential Treatment facility, the out-patient SUD treatment
practice with 6 satellite sites throughout the 3 counties in the North Country and
the Inqjaired Driver Care Management Program.

Accomplishments

Friendship House New Construction-Bethlehem, NH-S5.2 MIL - 2015-2018

17,588-sq ft, 32-Bcd Residential Substance Use Disorder Treatment Facility

•  Submissioo of state and federal grant applications resulting in $2.7 MIL in
awards & executed a grass roots advocacy campaign securing the remaining S2.S
MIL in anonymous donations

•  Issued all final project approvals on the design, project developroent,
construction, submission of permit applications and tovm zoning requirements,
and licensurc and compliance standards.

implemented New Reimbursement System, 2015

•  Eliminated the Division's dependence on grant funding by successfully procuring
contracts and credentialiog withNH Medicaid, MCO's, and Commercial
insurance companies creating eligibility to submit claims on a fee-for-service basis
stabilizing revenue and enhancing rates for service.

•  Successfully negotiated a contract amendment with DHHS to expand billablc
services to include Ou^atient and Intensive Outpatient services resulting in an
increase to ftom $1.8 MIL to $2.5MIL

Expert Panelist - Guidance Document on Best Practices: Community-Based
MAT for Opioid Use Disorders in New Hampshire, First Edition, 2016

Civic Involvement

2019-Present MWV Supports Recovery
2017 - Present North Country Serenity
2016- Present Stand-UpAndroscoggin>^ilc>'P®olUiori
2016-2018 Project Aware, BHS.Ad/soryBoiird
2017 - Present Littleton ATOD Coaliti

2018 - Present Lancaster Area Coalitio

2016-2017 NCHC Board of Direct

Board Membcf

Officer

Member

Mcntbcr"
Mcinbcr

Member
Member



Skills

Creative flair
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l^teging Community
Planter

i?
ProUJfienl in Office
Sui!

$mutlon focused
pjpblem resolution
Unique leadership
jnrough empowennent
Detail oriented

Excellent Community
and political relations

Good sense of humor

Cultural intelligence

Versatile and
adaptable

Computer and
technology adept
Knowledgeable grant
writer

Creative strategic
planner
Advocacy

Excellent written and
oral communication
skills
Well- informed in
policy and procedure
development
Proficient in budget
development and
management
Lateral thinking and
logical reasoning
Innovative

Experienced non-
profit management
Approachable,
relatable, and relevant

Education

Plymouth State University, Plymouth NH.
2017-In Progress pusiness Administration
Coursework; accounting, economics, finance, management, marketing theories
and practices of business ethics and social responsibility, quantitative skills to
analyze.
White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH.
2015-2017 {Business Administration
Coursework: management, accounting, finance, strategy, economics, statistics,
marketing, operations/project management, entrcpreneurship, and computer
applications. Completed requirements of the first two years of a four-year
business administration degree, AS-equivalent, 4.0 CPA
White Mountains Community College, Berlin NH.
2011 {Leadership North Country
Coursework: The program selects a diverse group aspiring leaders in northern
New Hampshire through a competitive nomination and application process.
Candidates participate in a 9-month program focused on education, arts and
culture, leadership and civil engagement, travel and tourism, and government
and politics.

References
Available upon request
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To obtain a position in the fieid of human services that maximizes and enhances my skill set, challenges
me, and supports continued professional growth

EXPERIENCE

JULY2020-PRESENT

PROGRAM DIRECTOR-HOMELESS & HOUSING PROGRAMS

TCCAP
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION, OVERSIGHT, AND DAV-TO-DAV MANAGEMENT
OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING PROJECTS. RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING SUPERVISION AND
TRAINING TO CASE MANAGERS AND OUTREACH PROGRAM SPECIALISTS AND MONITOR
COMPEl ENCIES OF PROVIDING DIRECT SERVICE. RESPONSIBLE TO WORK CLOSELY WITH
THE HOUSING STABILITY DEPT HEAD ON PROJECT DEVELOPMENT, MONITORING LEGAL
and ETHICAL INTEGRITY AND FIDELITY OF THE PROJECTS; AND REPORTING OUTCOMES.

AUGUST 2018-PRESENT

DIRECTOR OF SHELTER OPERATIONS

TCCAP

Responsible for overall operations of Tyler Blain House Homeless Shelter Lancaster, NH and
Building Operations at the Support Center Burch House Littleton NH. In charge of overseeing a
staff of 6 or more. Keeping shelters In compliance with our deliverables and making sure all
buildings are up to codes and standards.

MAY 2017-AUGUST 2018

IDCMP ADMINISTRARTIVE ASST/ INSTRUaOR, TCCAP/NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH
CONSORTIUM

Responsible for overseeing new client Intake process, Initial substance misuse screening and
development of service plan requirements required to satisfy DUI/DWI offense. Responsible to
coordinate and correspond with NH Dept. of Safety, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services,
prosecutor, and area district and superior courts. Responsible for processing Impaired Driver
Class registrations, scheduling class, and Inventory monitoring, control and procurement
Required to adhere to HIPAA and 42 CFR part 2 regulations.
As a NH certified IDEP instructor, responsible to teach 20- hour IDEP, document presence,
progress, and identify problematic substance using patterns that require further evaluation.

JUNE 2016-MAY 2017

TCCAP

FRIENDSHIP HOUSE

TLP SUPERVISOR

Responsible for providing residents with unique challenges, one on one or in small groups',
instruction designed to develop basic life skills, introduce and support entry level hands on



training and work experience; in either the culinary or maintenance areas of the Transitional
Living Program, and to foster self-empowerment helping the clients gain independence.

Responsible for overseeing the efficient operation of a residential health care facility kitchen and
food service preparation, inventory control, management and procurement, complying to all
health and safety code standards and regulations, while monitoring and adhering to budgetary
limitations.

EDUCATION

FALL 2016-PRESENT

HUMAN SERVICES, WHITE MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE

ONGOING

NH TRAINING INSTITUTE OF ADDICTIVE DISORDERS

•  HIV PREVENTION

•  SUICIDE PREVENTION

•  ETHICS AND BOUNDARIES

• DWI LAWS

JUNE 1997

H.S. DIPLOMA, NEW BEDFORD HIGH SCHOOL

SKILLS

•  PRIME FOR LIFE INSTRUaOR CERTIFIED • CRSW eligible

•  NH approved IDEP Instructor • CPR/AED certified
•  Serv-Safe trained

AcnvmES

Board of directors Serenity Center 2017-2018

President of Board of Directors Serenity Center 2018-present

Key Note Speaker/panelist in speaking engagements throughout Tri County service area
Featured as a part of a 6 week community education awareness special on N. Country Radio
Volunteered for Special Olympics for 15 years
Volunteered for committee running benefit concerts for American Cancer Society for 7 years



Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

PATH Kev Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Krlsty Letendre Chief programs Officer $74,690 0% 0%

Vacant Housing Stability Department
Head

0% 0%

Mathieu Diiclos Director of Housing Supports $47,500. 10% $4,750
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Coramissioner

Christine L.Stauniello

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271 -9474 1 -800-S52.3345 Ex L 9474

• Fox: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 6. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic &
Housing Stability to enter into a sole source agreement with Tri.County Community Action
Program Inc. (Vendor# 177195), 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570, to provide services
to homeless individuals with serious mental illness through the Project for Assistance in
Transition from Homelessness (PATH), in an amount not to exceed $104,744 upon date of
Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30. 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020 and SFY 2021.
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified

05-95-42-423010-7926 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, PATH GRANT

State Fiscal

Year Class/Account Title Activity Number Amount

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program Services TBD $  52.372

2021 102-500731 .

Contracts for

Program Services TBD $  52.372

Total; $  104,744

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this sole source request is because Tri-County Community Action
Program is the only program in Coos, Carroll and Grafton Counties that is able to provide these
specialized services to individuals with serious mental illness or those who have both serious
mental illness and substance use disorders, and are homeless or at imminent risk of being
homeless. The mental health center that serves this vast geographic region has not expressed
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

any interest to contract for PATH services; they have not applied when the Request for Proposals
(RPP) was published, most recently in 2015. Tri-County Community Action Program is the only
agency that is willing to offer comprehensive homeless outreach services in this region. As part
of the federal application, the Department must identify the sub-recipient agency and must
demonstrate that the sub-recipient agency has the experience and capacity to carry out the
identified services. Tri-County Community Action Program also provides identical training and
supen/ision of PATH services throughout the agency, and the consistency of resources and
services offered across the region.

Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Administration for the PATH Grant
enable Tri-County Community Action Program to provide sen/ices to individuals with serious
mental illness, or those who have both serious mental illness and substance use disorders and
are homeless or at imminent risk of being homeless. The primary emphasis of PATH is the
outreach and engagement into services and the housing of eligible individuals. Services
provided through this program will include:

•  Homeless Street Outreach;

•  Referrals for Screening and diagnostic treatment;
• Community mental health services; and
• Training and case management.

PATH case management services include, but are not limited to: assistance in obtaining
and coordinating'services for eligible homeless individual's assistance to eligible individuals in
obtaining income support services, including housing assistance, food stamps, and
supplemental security income (SSI) benefits; and referrals for other services, including referrals
to the community mental health centers as may be appropriate.

It is anticipated that Tri-County Community Action Program will serve approximately 300
individuals each year.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the Department reserves the right to extend
contract services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should the Governor and Executive . Council not approve this request, shelter and
homeless prevention resources for homeless individuals with serious mental illness may not be
available in their, community, which may increase the demand placed upon local welfare
authorities. People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking local shelter in
places that are not fit for people to live in, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities..
This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and
will be cut off from basic supports for health, education, and treatment.

Area served: Coos. Carroll and Grafton Counties

Source of.funds: 100% Federal Funds from Project for Assistance in Transition from
Homelessness (PATH), Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.150.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparlment of Health and Human Services 'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P.37 (versloo 5/8/15)
Subject: Project for Assistance in Transition from Homelesstiess fPATTn ('SS-2Q20-BHS-03-PATH^

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprieta^ must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Slate Agency Name
NH Deportment of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Nome

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Addre.ss

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

60-752-7001

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-79260000-

102

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2021

1.8 Price Limitation

SI 04.744

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1  Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowledgement: Stale of CooS

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified in block 1.12, or sntisfaciorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 hire Ota

2

>ea

Public or Justice of the Peace
HRIST1NA MORIN. Notary Public

ol New Hampshire
y Commiaslon Expires December 10,2023

Tame and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace
' ' ■ ' VN

14 State Agene^Signaturc

Dale

1.16 Ap^proval by^e N.H. DepartmettTTJt'Admmi/traiionl'Division of Personnel (sfapplicable)

J. 15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Cut
Director

ils-hf
1.17 Approval by the ̂ omcy Gcr>eta (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

-^///.. y1 / J On:

1.18 Approval by the G^^emof and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF COf^TRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency idcniificd in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding ony provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Slate Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Eflective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become cfTcctivc, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hercunder In excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or lenninotion of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifevcr, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Concractor notice of such termination. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EJG11B1T B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hcrcof. and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other iHan the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement .
those liquidated amounts required or permiiicd by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of oil payments authorized, or actually
mode hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 in connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliory
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coniroclor shall
not discriminoie against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agrccmcm is funded In any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Siate.^ issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed arnl otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation svith whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
pcriform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4'
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTjcer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's 'representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULTfREMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant,' term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of ibe following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying (he Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days fivm the date of the notice; and if (he Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days af\cr giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a vmttcn notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering thai (he portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Slate
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default: and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during (he
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
AgreenKnt, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
(he State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under (his Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this A^ecment for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Rcpon
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofticers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Slate to Its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELieCATlON/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without (he prior written
notice and consent of the Stale.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify end hold harmJess the State, its officers and
employees, ftom and against any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slatei its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the ads or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stole, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obuin and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1 .OOO.OOOper occurrence end 52,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all .
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80Vo of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insunmcc, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

3 of 4
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14.3 The ContTOCior shall furnish lo the Contracting Oflncer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, e ceniricate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, certificaic(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies: The ccrtificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals (hereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring (he insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15. I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants thai the Conireclor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensaiion in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Stale shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agrtxmcni.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of DefaulL No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only aflcr approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parlies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of (his Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining
provisions of (his Agreement will remain in full force and '
elTcct.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed on original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior .
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. SAMHSA's PATH program Is a formula grant authorized by the Stewart B.
McKlnnev Homeless Assistance Amendments Act of 1990

1.3. The Contractor shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs
under this contract must be familiar with and follow New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System policy, including specific information that is
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry.
Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the current HMIS
vendor website for New Hampshire.

1.4. The Contractor shall submit annual PATH data reports through the PATH Data
Exchange (PDX). an online data collection tool and shall contact the designated
PATH state contact at the Bureau of Housing Supports for assistance, training
and technical assistance, as necessary.

1.5. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.6. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall provide PATH-funded services in accordance with SAMHSA
and PATH program guidance to clients with serious mental illness or who have
both serious mental Illness and substance use disorders and are homeless or at

imminent risk of becoming homeless. The Contractor shall provide or refer clients
to services including, but not limited to;

2.1.1.Outreach Services.

2.1.2.Screening and diagnostic treatment services.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials'

SS-2019-BHS-03-PATH Page 1 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance In Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit A

2.1.3.Habilitation and rehabilitation services.

2.1.4.Mental Health Services.

2.1.5. Alcohol and drug treatment services.

2.1.6.Case management services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.6.1. Assisting clients with obtaining services and coordinating
services.

2.1.6.2. Assisting clients and families with obtaining Income support
services, including but not limited to:

2.1.6.2.1. Housing assistance.

2.1.6.2.2. Food stamps.

2.1.6.2.3. Supplemental security income benefits.

2.1.6.3. Referrals for additional services as may be appropriate,
including referrals to Primary Care Services.

2.1.7. Supportive services in residential settings.

2.1.8. Housing services as specified in Section 522(b) (10) of the Public Health
Service Act

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure staff and supervisors are trained In and have an
understanding of:

2.2.1. SAMHSA and PATH requirements.

2.2.2. Program expectations.

2.2.3. PATH guidance as provided in person and in writing by SAMHSA and
PATH staff.

2.2.4. Requirements for confidentiality and security safeguards of information
including obtaining appropriate individual consent and providing adequate
notice of nondisclosure prior to any referral in compliance with state and
federal laws and regulations.

2.2.5. Technical assistance providers and the Bureau of Housing Supports.

2.3. The Contractor may obtain PATH program manuals, reporting guidance, including
definitions and data standards, training webinars and other training materials for
Homeless Programs including PATH on the PATH Data Exchange (POX) and the
SAMHSA website.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance In Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit A

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly and annual reports that meet federal and
state law and regulation for HMIS data to the Department which include but not
limited to;

3.1.1. Demographic information on contacts and enrolled clients, reporting age,
gender, race/ethnicity, veteran status, prior/current residence, substance
use disorder, length of time outdoors.

3.1.2. Detailed narative budget yearly.

3.1.3. The number of current enrolled clients receiving services.

3.1.4. Services and referrals provided to outreached and enrolled clients.

3.2.The Contractor shall maintain records of clients and services provided, and enter
accurate and up-to-date data into HMIS. in accordance with HMIS policy and state
and federal law.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of clients are offered assistance with applying
for support services including but not limited to:

4.1^1. Housing assistance

4.1.2. Food Stamps

4.1.3. Supplemental security income benefits.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure 80% of appropriate clients receive referrals for
additional services, as needed, including but not limited to:

4.2.1. Primary Care

4.2.2. Mental Health Care

4.2.3. Substance Use Treatment

4.2.4. Childcare

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of clients are offered referrals to assist in
obtaining housing stability services including but not limited to:

4.3.1. Emergency homeless shelters services:

4.3.2. Continuum of Care programs;

4.3.3. Assistance with housing applications through state or local housing
authorities; and

4.3.4. Assistance with Security Deposit or first month's rent.

Tri-County Community AcUon Program, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials sX/-—
SS-2019-BHS-03-PATH Page3oM Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance In Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit A

5. Reporting

5.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly and annual reports to the Department within
thirty (30) days of the completion of the reporting period, ensuring reports include,
but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Demographic information reported in the aggregate relating to the client
contacts and enrollment as follows:

5.1.1.1. Client age;

5.1.1.2. Gender;

5.1.1.3. Race

5.1.1.4. Ethnicity;

5.1.1.5. Veteran status;

5.1.1.6. Prior residence

5.1.1.7. Current residence;

5.1.1.8. Substance use disorder; and

5.1.1.9. Length of time outdoors.

5.1.2. Detailed narrative of the Contractor's annual budget.

5.1.3. The number of current enrolled clients receiving services.

5.1.4. The type of services and referrals provided to outreach and enrolled
clients.

Tri-Couhty Communily Action Program, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Projects for Assistance In Transition from Homelessness

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with Federal funds anticipated to be available based upon continued
appropriation. Funds are conditioned upon continued support of the program by the state and
federal governments. Department access to supporting federal funding is dependent upon the
selected Contractor meeting the requirement in accordance with the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #93.150)

3. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
to the funding of the Senrices. operations prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
records shall k>e maintained by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of
funding from such public sources of funds.

4. Failure to submit reports as required in Exhibit A, or enter data into HMIS in a timely manner, or
non-compliance with other BHS data entry requirements or requests, could result in delay or
withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are confirmed by
the State, and could affect future funding awards.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-funded
programs and services and have records available for Department review, as requested.

6. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

6.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred In the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits 8-1, Budget and Exhibit B-2. Budget.

6.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the Tenth
(lO*^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

6.3. The Contractor shail ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

6.4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to or may be mailed to the PATH program administrator or:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant St

Concord. NH 03301

6.5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are
available.

4/^Tri-County Community Action Progrsm. inc. Exhibit B Contractor Inilials.
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7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified In Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. Payments may be svithheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance vi/ith any Federal
or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the said services or
products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this agreement.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be
made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the
Govemor and Executive Council.

11. REPORTS

11.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities; the Contractor covenants and agrees
to submit the following:

11.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR part 200. Three (3) copies of
the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

11.1.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, svithin
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in 'Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Program Activities, and Functions" by the Comptroller General of the United States.

12. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE: REVIEW BY THE STATE

12.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term 'Project Costs" shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project
Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2

CFR part 200as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines
established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR
part 200.

12.2. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow any
items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to ̂  in

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor initials
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excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows costs
for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts
awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture. The funds
authorized to be expended under this Agreement shall be used only for The Projects for
Assistance in Transition from Homelessness Program.

13. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

13.1. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only In accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

14. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

14.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting (or, grant funds and any
required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct
operations of the Contractor.

14.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR
part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall
be made according to EXHIBIT 8, Section 6. of this Agreement.

15. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

15.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS). To the extent possible BHS shall
notify the contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance
of each meeting

15.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS or designee may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
Interfere with contractor performance.

15.3. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within 5 business days.

15.4. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of the
contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and
all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

15.5. Changes to the contract service that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the BHS.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor inillals
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Conlraciors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibilily detennination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility detennination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that ail applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks; The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, ofTtcers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchaso: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs; I

Exhlbtt C - special Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, (he Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENHON, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ail costs

and other, expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect ail such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
In-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Stalistica! Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, NVhIch records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. MMIcal Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of sen/ices.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that (he report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provlslohs of Standards for Audit of Govemmenlal Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitatloh of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by (he Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: Ail information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of su^ information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

E*hlbil C - Special Provisions Contractor iriitiais,
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Writteri interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses Incun-ed by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on (he form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The'Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract end upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or -
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facllltlos: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor svith respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit, in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file end submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistlebiowar Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CoriTRACTOR Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform Its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Inserl the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractorsi'DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the funclion{s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

own*

Exhibit C - Spbdal Provisions Contredor Initials. _

Pago 4 o( 5 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: B8A505C8-D1DB-49BE-B368-E0AAF9A124D5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services,

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled 'Financial Management Guidelines' and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service (o be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEOERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A. for the purpose of Implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

EiMbit C - special Provisions Conlractor tititials
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REViSiONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDiTiONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ail obligations of the Slate
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in paH,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds, in
the event of a reduction, tenminetlon or modirication of appropriated or aveilable funds, the
State shall have the tight to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to (he State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications In Its
Renewal

1.3. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

ClM)HHSXI9041S
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wor1<place Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.SrC.- 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certincation Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part It of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free worltplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certiHcation to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to l>e engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occuning In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction:

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - CortiftcatJon regarding Drug Free Contractor InlUals
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1 ■ Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

Dare Name:

Exhibit 0 - Certification regardlrtg Drug Froo Contractor Initiate
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C.'1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX

"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loari, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its Instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into,. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:Tr-.-(>oA^Ccyv^vvwn'A^

Date Name; -
Title:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of th^General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12649 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary part'cipant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required beiow will not necessarily result in denial
of partidpation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
y/hom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "losver tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. . The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - CertiflcaUon Regarding Oebarment. Suspension Contractor initials
And Other Responsibility Matters

Cu/oteHS/ii07i3 Pflfle ^ of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: B8A505C8-D1DB^9BE-B368-EOAAF9A124D5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instnjctions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and Its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three*year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, brit>ery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or lo^l) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certlHcatlon; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:'
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibllity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date Name:

And Other Responsibility Matters ^I.QO/1^Exhibit F - Certification Regardng Dotwrment. Susponslort Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor v/ill comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) svhich adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in afiy program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34),.which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); ̂ ecutive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. ■ By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name
Adr\cy\

Dat Name:

Exhibli G
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CERTiFiCATION REGARDING ENViRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act),- requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of .18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directiy or through State or locai governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the taw may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identlfled in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1 ■ By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
vwth ail applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:Trt*Cjt*^^^ Cowawxuv\%Vv^ ^

Data I L Name:

CUAMHS/110713
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entltv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
.  in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoregatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor InlUsls
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i. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by "law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or-
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to.
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business /

3/2014 Exhibll I Contractor tnilials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

6;. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity. .

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to: '

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
o  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HiPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHj4
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shail be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shail make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's'request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PH) to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 ExhiMl I Contractor Initials
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Associate maintains such PHi. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ^ Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. ^

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

(j. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. T^—^
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e. Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severabie.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services >

"^he State Nameptlhe Co^rAct"^ ^
.

Signature of Authorized fTTpiii'iffnIullwii ^lii iiiimnr'idfT^iilhniii'nd Representative

^k\{ \;^irbr'^ri(hrrii<!|/|ri ?;"goAr\p
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized ̂ presentative Title of Authorized Representative

QiX\ \ K
Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individuai
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sut>-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109*282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Senrices end to comply with ell applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Date Namer55Avx^Z~63bN^

Exhibit J - C«rtlflcsUon Rdgardirtg the Foderal Funding Controclor tnltfab
Accountebllity And Trensp#«mcy Act (FFATA) Comptiance ^/■^/h//9'
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FORMA

.As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions ere true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
ioans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?'

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, piease answer the following:

3. Does the pubiic have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

a>OHKS/no7i3
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section

'  164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident'
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
sen/ices - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI),. Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last upd®{« 10/09/18 ExhiWiK Contractor InWato
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the- potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or 'PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such'as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Ust update 10/09/16 EidiibllK Contractor Initials.
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-  request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorised to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data vwll
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
doud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malv^are utilities. The environment, as a
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whole.- must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for .
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation, National institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destnjction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. . Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within, thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. the Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
•  confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from

creation. - transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure, proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the' engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with ail applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible-for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor wll work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States .unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
'  privacy and security of Confldential Information, .and must in all other respects

maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at ail times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If enervated and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. -limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as detemnined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved. -

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the ConHdential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5.- Determine wtiether Breach notification Is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI. must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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